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i DEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To The Members of DNEG India Media Services Limited
Rezport on the Audit of the Financial Statements

opinion

we have audited the accompanying financial statements of DNEG India Media Services Limited (“the
company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, and the Statement of Profit and [oss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in
Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the [Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended, ("Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, and its profit, total comprehensive income, its cash flows
and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified
under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

« The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board's Report, but does not include the financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

+ Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

e In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements, or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

« If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
\L other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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M @hagement’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Tr1€ Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
re SPect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
postion, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity
of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India.
ThIis responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provVisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
ard other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
ardestimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
inteémal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
th € accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In Preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
opeérations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company'’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
\J a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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mAateriality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate,
m &kes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial
stAtements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) Planning
th € scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any
identified misstatements in the financial statements.

we communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

we also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, rejated

safeguards.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the relevant books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2022
taken on record by the Board of Directors, nane of the directors is disqualified as on March 31,
2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act.

f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, In our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the
Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of
the Act.

h) With respect to the other matters to be.included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

(i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its financial statements.

(i) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

(iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

\
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(iv)

(a) The Management has represented that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any
other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“"Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, no
funds  have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (“"Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend
or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused
us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as
provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

(v) The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year and has not
proposed final dividend for the year.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells Chartered Accountants LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117364W/ W100739)

(udasles

Varsha A. Fadte

Partner

(Membership No. 103999)
UDIN: 22103999AXPIAC8351

Panaji, Goa, September 30, 2022
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(R€ferred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
rezPort of even date)

Re&port on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

W € have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of DNEG India Media Services
Lisnited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Owver Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section
14 3(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
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ag Surance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
co Mpany'’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

19 herent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Be cause of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial contro| gver
fimancial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that Lhe degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us the Company
has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and
such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022,
based on the criteria for internal financial control over financial reporting established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells Chartered Accountants LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117364W/ W100739)

&ug‘;\agﬁw

Varsha A. Fadte

Partner

(Membership No. 103999)
UDIN: 22103999AXPIACS8351

Panaji, Goa, September 30, 2022
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AFNNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Z €krred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
re POt of even date)

In trms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of
ac€Wnt and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and
be Hef, we state that:

(i)(a)(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Cquipment (plant and
equipment, capital work in progress and relevant details of right to use assets).

(i)(a)(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets.
(i)(b) Some of the Property, Plant and Equipment, (plant and equipment, capital work in

progress and right to use assets) were physically verified during the year by the
Management in accordance with a programme of verification, which in our opinion
provides for physical verification of all the Property, Plant and Equipment, (plant and
equipment, capital work in progress and right to use assets) at reasonable intervals
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its activities.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies
were noticed on such verification.

() () The Company does not have any immovable properties (other than immovable
properties where the Company is the lessee, and the lease agreements are duly
executed in favour of the Company) and hence clause (i) (c) of the Order is not
applicable.

(i)(d) The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment (including
Right of Use assets) and intangible assets during the year.

(i)(e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company
as at March 31, 2022 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

(ii)(a) The Company does not have any inventory and hence reporting under clause (ii)(a) of
the Order is not applicable.

(ii)(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has been
sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs.5 crores, in aggregate, at points of
time during the year, from a bank on the basis of security of current assets. In our
opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the quarterly
inventory & receivable statements comprising of receivables, sales, creditors etc.,
submitted by the Company with such bank, are in agreement with the unaudited books
of account of the Company of the respective quarters.

(iii) The Company has not made any investments in, provided any guarantee or security,
and granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to
companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties during the year, and
hence reporting under clause (iii) of the Order is not applicable.

(iv) The Company has not granted any loans, made investments or provided guarantees or
securities and hence reporting under clause (iv) of the Order is not applicable.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be
deposits. Hence, reporting under clause (v) of the Order is not applicable.
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(\/i)

(vii)(b)

(viil)

(ix){a)
(ix)(b)

(ix)(c)
(ix)(d)
(ix)(e)

(ix)(F)

(x)(a)

W

The maintenance of cost records has not been specified for the activities of the
Company by the Central Government under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013,

In respect of statutory dues:

Undisputed statutory dues, including Goods and Service Tax, Provident Fund,
Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales Tax, duty of Custom, duty of Excise,
Value Added Tax, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to the Company
have generally been regularly deposited by it with the appropriate authorities though
the delays in deposit have not been serious.

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service tax,
Provident Fund, Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Custom, Duty of Excise,
Value Added Tax, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to Company in
arrears as at March 31, 2022 for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable.

Details of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) above which have not been
deposited as on March 31, 2022 on account of disputes are given below:

Name of the Nature of Forum where Period to Amount
statue dues dispute is pending which the (Rupees
amount in lakhs)
relates
Income Tax | Income Tax | Income Tax | AY 2017-18 1,818.19
Act, 1961 Dues Appellate Tribunal-
Appeals

There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were
surrendered or disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act,
1961 (43 of 1961) during the year.

In our opinion, the Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or other
borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender during the year.

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution
or government or any government authority.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, in our opinion, term loans availed by the
Company were, applied by the Company during the year for the purposes for which the
loans were obtained.

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised on
short-term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term
purposes by the Company.

The Company has not made any investment or given in new loans or advances to its
subsidiary during the year and hence, reporting under clause (ix)(e) of the Order is not
applicable.

The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in
its subsidiary company.

The Company has not issued any of its securities (including debt instruments) during
the year and hence reporting under clause (x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.
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( >(b)

(>)a)

(><1)b)

(><i)(c)
(<1i)

(< iii)

(xiv)(a)
(xiv)(b)

(xV)

(xvi)(a)

(xvi)(b)

{xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

During the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence
reporting under clause (x)(b) of Lhe Order is nol applicable Lo the Company.

To the best of our knowledge, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the
Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

To the best of our knowledge, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the
Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and
upto the date of this report.

As represented to us by the Management, there were no whistle blower complaints
received by the Company during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the
Order is not applicable.

In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the
Companies Act, where applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the
details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements etc.
as required by the applicable accounting standards.

In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with
the size and the nature of its business.

We have considered, the internal audit reports issued to the Company during the year
and covering the period upto March 31, 2022.

In our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash
transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors and hence
provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the
Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause (xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order is
not applicable.

The Group does not have any Core Investment Company (CIC) as part of the Group as
per the definition of Group contained in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2016 and hence the reporting under clause (xvi)(d) of paragraph 3 of the
Order is not applicable.

The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our
audit and the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the
year.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and
based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has
come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists
as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period
of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an
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assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting
is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year
from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall
due.

(><X) In respect of other than ongoing projects, the Company has transferred unspent
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) amount, to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to
the Companies Act, 2013 before the date of this report and within a period of six months
of the expiry of the financial year in compliance with second proviso to sub-section (5
of section 135 of the said Act (also refer note 36).

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells Chartered Accountants LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No.117364W / W100739)

OmgL.chLuJ;

Varsha A. Fadte

Partner

(Membership No. 103999)
UDIN: 22103999AXPIACS8351

Panaji, Goa, September 30, 2022



DNEG INDIA MEDIA SERVICES LIMITED

Balance sheet as at

Non-current assets

in ¥ Lakhs

Notes  March 31, 2022 i March 31, 2021

(a) Property, plant and equipment 4 (a) 14,228.83 14,142.38
(b) Capital Work in Progress 4 (b) 18.98 578
(c) Goodwill 5A 4,213,16 4.213.16
(d) Other intangible assets 5A 33.52 42 36
(e) Right of use assets 6B 16,018.40 13,008.15
(f) Financial assets
1) Investment 6 1,5601.00 : 1,601.00
ii) Others 7 2,167.85 B,737.74
(g) Income tax assets (net) 739.79 653.68
(h) Other non-current assets 8 123.98 449.92
(i) Deferred tax asset (net) 27d 3.851.71 4.076.06
Total non-current assets 42,897.22 44,830.22
Current assets
(a) Financial assets
i) Trade receivables 9 39,881.16 10,221.189
iiy Cash and cash eguivalents 10a 470.12 5,490.82
iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above 10b 560,52 526.45
iv) Others 11 6,226.86 12,494 58
(b) Other current assets 12 4,705.57 3,205.07
Total current assets 51,844,23 31,938.21
Total assets 94,741.45 76,768.43
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 13 9.807.96 9,807.96
(b) Other equity 14 (33,514.44) (41,557.92)
Tatal equity (23,706.48)  (31,749.96)
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
i) Borrowings 15 11,992.86 18,433.77
Ii) Lease Liahllities 343 10.899.74 9.220.08
(b) Provisions 16 2,750.31 2,130.40
Totai non-current liabilities 25,642.91 29,784.25
Current liabllities
{a) Financial llabllities
1) Borrowings 17 16,371.74 2,978.82
1) Lease lighilities 34a 5,587.60 5.275.47
lii) Trade payables
- Total outstanding due of Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 18 - -
- Tatal outstanding due of other than Micra Enterprises and Small Enterprises 18 2,424.34 3.492.19
Iv) Others 19 54,519.71 58,221.83
(b) Provisions 20 52.36 47.96
(c) Other current liabilities 21 13,848.27 8,717.87
Total current liabilities 92,805.02 78,734.14
Total liabilities 118,447.93 108,518.39
Total equity and llabllities 94,741.45 76,768.43
See accompanying notes to the financial statements 1-42
In terms of our report attached.
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants B .
Lo gk >y
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Varsha A. Fadte

Partner

Place : Panaji, Goa

Date : September 30, 2022

Merzin Tavaria

Naresh Malhotra

Whole-time Director Director

DiN 07015623
Place : Mumbai

Nyt

Vikas Rathee

DIN 00004597
Place : Mumbai

Varsha Gupta

Executive Director and Company Secretary
Chief Financial Officer Place: Mumbal

DIN 07015635
Place : London

Date : September 30, 2022



DNEG INDIA MEDIA SERVICES LIMITED

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended
|

in ¥ Lakhs
Notes March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

In terms of our report attached.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells Chartered Accountants LLP

Chartered Accountants

@umw

Varsha A. Fadte

Partner

Place : Panaji, Goa

Date : September 30, 2022

|Revenue |
Revenue from operations 2 | 73,921.13 | 54,557.06
'Other income 23 | 1,361.38 | 672.97
|Total Income 75,282.51 §5,230.03
|
|Expenses
| Employee bensfits expense 24 | 43,505.08 31,163.76
| Finance costs | 26 | 2,827.60 2,606.08
| Depreciation, amortisation and impairment expense |4, 5A & 5B| 8,9156.71 | 7,888.25
| Other expenses | 26 11,618.07 | 13,135.78
| Total expenses 66,866.46 | 54,793.87
|Profit before tax 8,416.05 | 436.18
|Tax (credit) (net) 27
Current tax (1.08)| -
Deferred tax 248.90 | (8.29)
Total tax (credit) (net) 247.82 | (8.29)
Profit for the year 8,168.23 44445
Other comprehensive loss
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement of defined benefit plan (149.31) 139.08
Income tax (expense) / credit on the above 24.56 (35.01)
| Total other comprehensive profit / (loss) (124.75) 104.07
Total comprehensive income for the year 8,043.48 548.52
Earnings per equity share (in €, Face value ¥ 10 each)
Basic and diluted 28 8.33 0.45
See accompanying notes to the financial statements 142

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Merzin Tavarla Naresh Malhotra
Whole-time Director Director
DIN 07015623 DIN 00004597
Place : Mumbal Place : Mumbal
\\&,Q'“,:» N bk
Vikas Rathee Varsha Gupta

Executlve Director and Company Secretary
Chlef Financial Officer  place: Mumbal

DIN 07015635

Place : London

Date : September 30, 2022
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Stastement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2022

A. EQulty share capital

| As 8t April 1, 2020 )

|Chnges in equity share capitai during the year
| Maarch 31, 2021

|Chages in equity share capital during the year
| Mareh 31, 2022

B, Other equity

| As at Aprll 1, 2020

'Shares issued during the year

Business combination under common control

| Profit for the year (net of tax)

Other comprehensive loss for the year (net of tax)

' March 31, 2021

Profit for the year (net of tax)

Other comprehensive loss for the year (net of tax)
March 31, 2022

in ¥ Lakhs
Amount

9,807.96 |

9,807.96

9,807.96

Reserves and Surplus

Securltles | Shares | Capltal
Premlum pending Reserve
Account allotment

(refer note 41)

36,844.62  9,807.96 |  (35,470.14)
- | {9,807.96)| -
- - | (26.826.72)|
- - | -
36,844.62 - (62,296.86)
- | = | -
=1 | =
36,844.62 - | (62,296.88)

i
Retalned
Earnings |

|
(16,654.20) |
- |

- |
444.45 |
104:_(_)7 |

(16,105.68)|

8,168.23 |
(124.75)|
(8,062.20)

in € Lakhs
Total

(5,471.76)
(9.807.96)
(26.826.72)
444.45
104.07 |
(41,667.92) |
8,168.23
(124.75)
(33,514.44)

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

In terms of our report attached.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells Chartered Accountants LLP

Chartered Accountants

(ugladus

Varsha A. Fadte

Partner

Place : Panajl, Goa

Date : September 30, 2022

Fragain

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Merzin Tavaria

Naresh Malhotra

Whole-time Director Director

DIN 07015623
Place : Mumbali

o

Vikas Rathee

DIN 00004597
Place : Mumbai

N AP

Vi
Executive Director cﬂﬁ::.ﬁ,"m
and
Chlef Financial gﬂf:-t&wumhal
Officer '
DIN 07015635

Place : London
Date : September 30, 2022
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Ca sh Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2022

A. Cash flow from Operating activities
Ne-t Profit before tax
Adj"Simenis for ;
DePreciation, amortisation and impairment expense
| Un realised foreign exchange loss (net)
| Liabllity / provision no longer required written back
| Bad debts wrilten off
Provislon for doubtful debts and advances
ProVision for doubtful debts written back
| Bad & doubtiul advances written off
| Interest income
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipments
Firmance cost
Oprerating profit hefore working caplital changes

Changes [n working capital :

(Increase) in trade and other recelvables

Increase / (Decrease) In trade and other payables

Cash generated from operations

Income Taxes (pald) / refunds

“Net Cash flow generated from operating actlvities (A)

B. Cash flow from Investing activitles

Purchase of Property, plant and equipments and other intangibles assets (including capital work in progress) '

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Interest received

Fixed deposits made during the year

Payment towards business combination

Net Cash used In Investing activities (B)

C. Cash flow from Financing actlvitles

Proceeds from Long-term borrowings

Repayment of lease liabilities

Proceeds/ (Repayment) from short-term borrowings (net)
Interest paid on lease liabilities

Finance costs paid

Net cash (used In) / generated from financing activities (C)

| Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
Disclosure as per Ind AS 7 (amended) is as follows:

March 31, 2021

|Borrowing - Non Current (refer note 15) 18,433.77 |
Borrowing - Current (refer note 17) 2,978.82
See accompanying notes to the financial statements

In terms of our report attached.

For Delolitte Haskins & Sells Chartered Accountants LLP
Chartered Accountants

@méw Ay

Varsha A. Fadte

Partner

Place : Panajl, Goa

Date : September 30, 2022

Notes March 31, 2022

8,416.05 |

8,915, 71 |
(174. 77)|
(301.79)|
675.57

(402 53)|
900.00
(145. ney

I
s b
[« -1}
o0
=

2,827.60 |
20,667. 92

(21,289, 54}|
5,664.91 |
"5,043.20 |

(85.03)
4,958.26

(3,037.24)|
164.26 |
51.02
(34.07)|
(4,450.00)|
(7,306.03)
I
|
2,399.00 '
(6, 695 84)|
3,473.90
(1,495, 93)|
(354 06) |
(2 672.93)

(6,020.70) |
10a

10a 470.12

Non Cash
Cash flow movement
2.399.00
3.473.90 9.919.02

1-42

§,490.82 |

(8,839.91)

) in ¥ Lakhs
March 31, 2021

438.16

7,888.25
1,122.50
(490.69)
34.27
225.11

2717.01
(139.93)
823.23 |
2,606.08

16,221.99 |

(2,354.21)|
(7,685, 72)|
6,182.07
152.51
6,334.58

(362.05)

18.93 |
(517.03)

(860.15)|

5623.72
(3,053.39),
(3,529.65)|
(1,291.26)
(401.97),
(2,652.54)

1821.89
3,668.93
5_,_490.8'2

March 341, 2022
11,992.86
16,371.74

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Merzin Tavaria
Whole-time Director
DIN 07015623

Place : Mumbal

Ny

Vikas Rathee
Executive Director and
Chief Financial Officer
DIN 07015635

Place : London

Date : September 30, 2022

—

Naresh Malhotra
Director

DIN 00004597
Plara * Mumhal

NG

Varsha Gupta
Company Secretary
Place: Mumbai
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Notes forming part of the financial statements
1. General information

DNEG India Media Services Limited (“the Company”) is a public limited company incorporated and domiciled
in India. The Company is the wholly owned subsidiary of Prime Focus World N.V. and the ultimate holding
company is Prime Focus Limited (“PFL"). The Company provides a variety of post-production services
including digital intermediate, visual special effects (VFX), two dimensions to three dimensions (2D to 3D)
conversion and other technical services to its inmediate holding company and other PFL group companies
and to clients in the film, broadcast and commercial sectors. The address of its registered office is Mainframe
IT Park, Building H, Royal Palms, Aarey Colony, Goregaon (East), Mumbai — 400 065.

2, Significant accounting policies
2.1 Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (herein
after referred to as ‘Ind AS’) specified under section 133 and other relevant provisions of Companies Act,
2013. ,

2.2 Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services. :

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardiess of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and / or disclosure purposes in these financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 102, leasing transactions
that are within the scope of Ind AS 116, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are
not fair value, such as net realizable value in Ind AS 2 or value in use in Ind AS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2, or 3

based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance

of the inputs to the fair value measurements in its entirety, which are described as follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
entity can access at the measurement date;

¢ Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the
assets or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

* Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating
cycle and other criteria as set out in the Division Il of Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the
nature of products and services and the time between acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation
in cash and cash equivalent, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve (12) months for the
purpose of current or non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

The Company'’s financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (Z), which is its functional currency and
all figures are converted into rupees lakhs rounded off to two decimals except as otherwise stated.
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2.3 Use of Estimates:

The preparation of financial statements requires the Management to make estimates and assumptions
considered in the reported amounts of assets and liabilities (including contingent liabilities) and the reported
income and expenses during the year. The Management believes that the estimates used in preparation of
the financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Future results could differ due to these estimates and
the differences between the actual results and the estimates are recognised in the periods in which the results
are known/ materialise.

2.4 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of services.
Revenue is shown net of applicable taxes. Revenue (Income) is recognised when there is no significant
uncertainty as to its determination or realisation.

2.4.1 Rendering of services

The Company provides a variety of post-production services including digital intermediate, visual special
effects (VFX), two dimensions to three dimensions (2D to 3D) conversion and other technical services to its
immediate holding company and other PFL gfoup companies and to clients in the film, broadcast and
commercial sectors.

Revenue on time-and-material contracts are recognized as the related services are performed and the
revenues from the end of the last billing to the balance sheet date are recognized as unbilled revenues.
Revenue from services provided under fixed price contracts, where the outcome can be estimated reliably, is
recognized following the percentage of completion method, where revenue is recognized in proportion to the
progress of the contract activity. The progress of the contract activity is usually determined as a proportion of
hours spent up to the balance sheet date, which bears to the total hours estimated for the contract. If losses
are expected on contracts these are recognized when such losses become evident. Further, the Company
uses significant judgements while determining the transaction price allocated to various performance
obligations in the revenue contract.

The Company has an agreement with its immediate holding company and fellow subsidiaries based on which
it has let out its operational capacity for execution of VFX and 2D to 3D conversion for projects outsourced at
related cost plus fixed margin of 15%. The Company accrues for this revenue based on actual cost incurred
during the period.

Unbilled revenue is included within ‘other financial assets’ and billing in advance is included as deferred
revenue in ‘Other current liabilities’.

2.4.2 Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time
basis by reference to the principal outstanding and the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

2.4.3 Rental income

The Company'’s policy for recognition of revenue from operating leases is described in note 2.5.1 below.

e
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2.5 Leasing
2.5.1 The Company as lessor

l.eases under which the Company is a lessor are classified as finance or operating leases. Lease contractg
where all the risks and rewards are substantially transferred to the lessee, the lease contracts are classified
as finance leases. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

For leases under which the Company is an intermediate lessor, the Company accounts for the head-lease
and the syb—lease as two separate contracts. The sub-lease is further classified either as a finance lease or
an operating lease by reference to the right-to-use asset arising from the head-lease.

In respect of assets provided on finance leases, amounts due from lessees are recorded as receivables at -
the amount of the Company's net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting
periods to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Company's net investment outstanding in respect
of the leases. In respect of assets given on operating lease, lease rentals are accounted in the Statement of
Profit and Loss, on accrual basis in accordance with the respective lease agreements.

2.5.2 The Company as lessee

The Company enters into an arrangement for lease of buildings, plant and machinery including computer
software. Such arrangements are generally for a fixed period but may have extension or termination options.
The Company assesses, whether the contract is, or contains, a lease, at its inception. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to —

a. control the use of an identified asset,

b. obtain substantially all the economic benefits from use of the identified asset, and

c. direct the use of the identified asset

The Company determines the lease term as the noncancellable period of a lease, together with periods
covered by an option to extend the lease, where the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option.

The Company at the commencement of the lease contract recognizes a Right-to-Use asset at cost and
corresponding lease liability, except for leases with term of less than twelve months (short term leases) and
low-value assets. For these short term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments
as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The cost of the right-to-use asset comprises the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability, any
lease payments made at or before the inception date of the lease, plus any initial direct costs, less any lease
incentives received.

Subsequently, the right-to-use assets are measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. The right-to-use assets are depreciated using the straight-line method
from the commencement date over the shorter of lease term or useful life of right-to-use asset. The estimated
useful life of right-to-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property, plant and equipment.

The Company applies Ind AS 36 to determine whether an right-to-use asset is impaired and accounts for any
identified impairment loss. Refer 2.14 below.

For lease liabilities at the commencement of the lease, the Company measures the lease liability at the
present value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date. The lease payments are discounted using
the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined, if that rate is not readily determined,
the lease payments are discounted using the incremental borrowing rate that the Company would have to
pay to borrow funds, including the consideration of factors such as the nature of the asset and location,
collateral, market terms and conditions, as applicable in a similar economic environment. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made.
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The Company recognizes the amount of the re-measurement of lease liability as an adjustment to the right-
to-use assets. Where the carrying amount of the right-to-use asset is reduced to zero and there is a further
reduction in the measurement of the lease liability, the Company recognizes any remaining amount of the re-
measurement in statement of profit and loss. Lease liability payments are classified as cash used in financing
activities in the statement of cash flows.

26  Foreign currency translation and transactions

In preparing the financial statements, transactions in currencies other than the entity's functional currency

{foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the

end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates

prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies

- are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items
" that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise

except for:

¢ exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating to assets under construction for further
productive use, which are included in the cost of those assets when they are regarded as an adjustment
to interest costs on those foreign currency borrowings;

* exchange differences on transactions entered into in order to hedge certain foreign currency risks.

2.7 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale.

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.

Al other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.
2.8 Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the Company will comply with
the conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which the
Company recognises as expense the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Specifically, government grants whose primary condition is that the Company should purchase, construct or
otherwise acquire non-current assets are recognised as deferred revenue in the balance sheet and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Company with no future related costs are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they become receivable.

The benefit of a government loan at below-market rate of interest is treated as a government grant measured
as the difference between proceeds received and the fair value of the loan based on prevailing market interest
rates.

Government grant under Service Export from India Scheme (SEIS) is given by providing duty scrip credit for
eligible exports. Under the scheme, service providers, located in India, are rewarded under the SEIS scheme,
for all eligible export of services from India. The Company claims SEIS at notified rates on the net free foreign
exchange earned. These duty credit scrips can be used for payment of basic custom duty and are freely

\s
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transferable. The Company recognizes SEIS as export incentive income once the conditions related to such
incentives are fulfilled by the Company.

2.9 Employee benefits
2.9.1 Retirement benefit costs and termination benefits

Payments to defined contribution plans are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

For defined benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method,

with actuarial valuation being carried out at the end of each annual reporting period. Re-measurement,

comprising actuarial gains and losses, is reflected immediately in the balance sheet with a charge or credit

recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Re-measurement recognised

in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained earnings and is not reclassified to profit

or loss. Past service cost is recognised in profit or loss in the period of a plan amendment. Net interest is

calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability or

asset. Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows:

* Service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on curtailments
and settlements);

o Netinterest expense or income; and

* Re-measurement

The Company presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in profit or loss in the line item
‘Employee benefits expense’. Curtailment gains and losses are accounted for as past service costs.

A liability for termination benefit is recognised at the earlier of when the entity can no longer withdraw the
offer of the termination benefit and when the entity recognises any related restructuring costs.

29.2 Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and
sick leave in the period the related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected
to be paid in exchange for that service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount
of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits are measured at the present value of
the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made by the Company in respect of services provided by
employees up to the reporting date.

210 Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

2.10.1 Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’
as reported in the Statement of Profit and Loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or

deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Company's current tax is
X;:’alculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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2.10.2 Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary differences arise from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary differences arises
from the initial recognition of goodwill.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on the tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Company expects at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

2.10.3 Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises
from the initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for the
business combination.

2.1 Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal group are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met
only when the asset (or disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its present condition subject only to
terms that are usual and customary for sale of such asset (or disposal group) and its sale is highly probable.
Management must be committed to the sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a
completed sale within one year from the date of classification.

Non-current assets (and disposal group) classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell.

212  Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

PPE are stated at cost of acquisition or construction. They are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment loss, if any. The cost comprises the purchase price and any directly attributable
cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. Any trade discounts and rebates are
deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of PPE is added to its book value only if it increases the future
benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standards of performance. All other expenses
on existing PPE, including day-to-day repair and maintenance expenditure and cost of replacing parts, are
charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss for the period during which such expenses are incurred.

\
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Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold land and properties under
construction) less their residual values using the straight-line method over their useful lives estimated by
Management, which are similar to useful life prescribed under Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Cost of Leasehold improvements is amortised over a period of lease.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement
of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

2.13 Intangible assets
2.13.1 |Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful lives and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are acquired separately and are carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses.

2.13.2 Internally-generated intangible assets — research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally generated intangible asset arising from development (or from the development phase of an
internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all the following have been demonstrated:

e the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

the intention to complete the intangible asset and use it or sell it;

the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits;

the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to
use or sell the intangible asset; and

o the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its development.

The amount initially recognised for internally generated intangible assets is the sum of expenditure incurred
from the date when the intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria listed above. Where no internally
generated intangible asset can be recognised, development expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally generated intangible assets are reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets that are separately
acquired.

2.13.3 Useful lives of intangible assets

Software is amortised on straight line basis over the estimated usefut life of six years.

2.13.4 De-recognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is de-recognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use
or disposal. Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference

between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when
the asset is de-recognised.
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214 Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible
assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of
the impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When
a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest of the cash-generating units for which
a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for
impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which
the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

2.15 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flow (when the effect of the time value of money is
material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from
a third party, a receivable is recognised as if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the
amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

2.15.1 Onerous contracts

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognised and measured as provisions. An onerous
contract is considered to exist where the Company has a contract under which the unavoidable costs of
meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received from the
contract.

2.15.2 Restructurings
A restructuring provision is recognised when the Company has developed a detailed formal plan for the

restructuring and has raised a valid expectation in those affected that it will carry out the restructuring by
starting to implement the plan or announcing its main features to those affected by it. The measurement of a
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restructuring, which are those amounts that are both necessarily entailed by the restructuring and not
associated with the ongoing activities of the entity.

2.16 Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a Company becomes a party to the contractugj
provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss. -

217 Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised or de-recognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair
value, depending on the classification of the financial assets.

2.17.1 Classification of financial assets

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised cost (except for

debt instruments that are designated at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition):

e the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows; and

» the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

For the impairment policy on financial assets measured at amortised cost, refer note 2.17.5

Debt instruments that meets the following conditions are measured at fair value through other comprehensive

income (FVTOCI) (except for debt instruments that are designed as at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

on initial recognition);

» the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets; and

= the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Interest income is recognised in profit or loss for FVTOCI debt instruments. For the purposes of recognising
foreign exchange gains and losses, FVTOCI debt instruments are treated as financial assets measured at
amortised cost. Thus, exchange differences on the amortised cost are recognised in profit or loss and other
changes in the fair value of FVTOCI financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive income. When
the investment is disposed of, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated is reclassified to profit or

loss.

For the impairment policy on debt instruments at FVTOCI, refer Note 2.17.5.
All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value.

2.17.2 Effective interest method
The effective interest is a method of calculating the amortised cost of debt instruments and of allocating

interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
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interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt
instrument, or, where applicable, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets
classified as at FVTPL. Interest income is recognised in profit or loss and is included in the "Other income”
line item.

2.17.3 Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI

On initial recognition, the Company can make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-instrument basis)
to present the subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income pertaining to investments in
equity instruments. This election is not permitted if the equity investment is held for trading. These elected
investments are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently, they are measured at
fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair'value recognised in other comprehensive income.
The cumulative gain or loss is not reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the investments.

A financial asset is held for trading if:
o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term; or

' on initial recognition, it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Company manages

together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or
o itis a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument or a financial guarantee.

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss when the Company's
right to receive the dividends is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the entity, the dividend does not represent a recovery of part of cost of the investment
and the amount of dividend can be measured reliably. Dividends recognised in profit or loss are included in
the 'Other income' line item.

2.17.4 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Investments in equity instruments other than in equity shares in subsidiaries, are classified as FVTPL, unless
the Company irrevocably elects on initial recognition to present subsequent changes in fair value in other
comprehensive income for investments in equity instruments which are not held for trading (see note 2.17.3
above).

Debt instruments that do not meet the amortised cost criteria or FVTOCI criteria (see above) are measured
at FVTPL. In addition, debt instruments that meet the amortised cost criteria or the FVTOC] criteria but are
designated as at FVTPL are measured at FVTPL.

A financial asset that meets the amortised cost criteria or debt instruments that meet the FVTOCI criteria may
be designated as at FVTPL upon initial measurement if such designation eliminates or significantly reduces
a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would arise from measuring assets or liabilities or
recognising the gains and losses on them on different basis. The Company has not designated any debt
instruments at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any gains or
losses arising on re-measurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and is included in the ‘Other income’ line
item. Dividend on financial assets at FVTPL is recognised when the Company's right to receive the dividends
is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity, the
dividend does not represent a recovery of part of cost of the investment and the amount of dividend can be
measured reliably.

2.17.5 Impairment of financial assets

The Company applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on financial assets
measured at amortised cost, debt instruments at FVTOCI, lease receivables, trade receivables, other
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contractual rights to receive cash or other financial asset, and financial guarantees not designated as at
FVTPL.

Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of default occurring
as the weights. Credit loss is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company
in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive (i.e. all cash
shortfalls), discounted at the original effective interest rate (or credit-adjusted effective interest rate for
purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets). The Company estimates cash flows by considering
all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options)
through the expected life of that financial instrument.

The Company measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to lifetime expected
credit losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition.
If the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company
measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit
losses. 12-month expected credit losses are portion of the life-time expected credit losses that represent the
lifetime cash shortfalls that will result if default occurs within the 12 months after the reporting date and thus,
are not cash shortfalls that are predicted over the next 12 months.

If the Company measured loss allowance for a financial instrument at lifetime expected credit toss model in
the previous period, but determines at the end of a reporting period that the credit risk has not increased
significantly since initial recognition due to improvement in credit quality as compared to the previous period,
the Company again measures the loss allowance based on 12-month expected credit losses.

When making the assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, the Company uses the change in the risk of a default occurring over the expected life of the
financial instrument instead of the change in the amount of expected credit losses. To make that assessment,
the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort, that is indicative of
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from
transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 115, the Company always measures the loss
allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables, the
Company has used a practical expedient as permitted under Ind AS 109. This expected credit loss allowance
is computed based on a provision matrix which takes into account historical credit loss experience and
adjusted for forward-looking information.

The impairment requirements for the recognition and measurement of a loss allowance are equally applied
to debt instruments at FVTOCI except that the loss allowance is recognised in other comprehensive income
and is not reduced from the carrying amount in the balance sheet.

2.17.6 De-recognition of financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
asset to another party. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognises its retained interest in the
asset and an associated liability for the amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues to recognise the
financial asset and also a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset's carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
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recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated In equity is recognised in profit or loss if such
gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset.

On derecognition of financial asset other than its entirety (e.g. when the Company retains an option to
repurchase part of the transferred asset), the Company allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial
asset between the part it continues to recognise under continuing involvement, and the part it no longer
recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The difference
between the carrying amount allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the sum of the
consideration received for the part no longer recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that
had been recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in profit or losses if such gain or loss
would have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset. A cumulative gain
or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is allocated between the part that continues
to be recognised in other comprehensive income is allocated between the part that continues to be recognised
and the part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the relative fair value of those parts.

2.17.7 Foreign exchange gains and losses

The fair value of financial assets denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and

translated at the spot rate at the end of each reporting period.

e Forforeign currency denominated financial assets measured at amortised cost and FVTPL, the exchange
differences are recognised in profit or loss except for those which are designated as hedging instruments
in a hedging relationship.

e Changes in the carrying amount of investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI relating to changes in
foreign currency rates are recognised in other comprehensive income.

e For the purposes of recognising foreign exchange gains and losses, FVTOCI debt instruments are treated
as financial assets measured at amortised cost. Thus, exchange differences on the amortised cost are
recognised in profit or loss and other changes in the fair value of FVTOCI financial assets are recognised
in other comprehensive income.

2.17.8 Investment in subsidiaries.

The Company has accounted for its investments in subsidiaries at cost less impairment loss (if any).

2.18 Financial liabilities and equity instruments

2.18.1 Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement and the definitions of a financial liability and
equity instrument.

2.18.2 Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company's own equity
instruments.

2.18.3 Compound financial instruments

The component parts of compound financial instruments (convertible notes) issued by the Company are

classified separately as financial liabilities and equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument. A conversion option that will
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be settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of the
Company’s own equity instruments is an equity instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component is estimated using the prevailing market interest
rate for similar non-convertible instruments. This amount is recognised as a liability on an amortised cost
basis using the effective interest method until extinguished upon conversion or at the instrument’s maturity
date.

The conversion option classified as equity is determined by deducting the amount of the liability component
from the fair value of the compound financial instrument as a whole. This is recognised and included in equity,
net of income tax effects, and is not subsequently remeasured. In addition, the conversion option classified
as equity will remain in equity until the conversion option is exercised, in which case, the balance recognised
in equity will be transferred to other component of equity. When the conversion option remains unexercised
at the maturity date of the convertible note, the balance recognised in equity will be transferred to retained
earnings. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss upon conversion or expiration of the conversion option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible notes are allocated to the liability and equity
components in proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the equity
component are recognised directly in equity. Transaction costs relating to the liability component are included
in the carrying amount of the liability component and are amortised over the lives of the convertible notes
using the effective interest method.

2.18.4 Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method or at
FVTPL.

However, financial liabilities that arise when a transfer of a financial asset does not qualify for de-recognition
or when the continuing involvement approach applies, financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company,
and commitments issued by the Company to provide a loan at below-market interest rate are measured in
accordance with the specific accounting policies set out below.

2.18.4.1 Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is either contingent consideration
recognised by the Company as an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies or held
for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

e it has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or

e on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Company manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

* itis a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading or contingent consideration recognised by the
Company as an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies, may be designated as at
FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

e such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise;

o the financial liability forms part of a group of financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which is
managed, and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Company’s
documented risk management or investment strategy, and information about the grouping is provided
internally on that basis; or

o it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and the Ind AS 109 permits the
entire combined contract to be designated as at FVTPL in accordance with Ind AS 109.
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Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on re-measurement
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any interest paid on
the financial liability and is included in the ‘Other income' line item.

However, for financial liabilities that are not held for trading and are designated as at FVTPL, the amount of
change in fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of the liability is
recognised in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes mismatch in
profit or loss, in which case these effects of changes in credit risk are recognised in profit or loss. Changes in
fair value attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk that are recognised in other comprehensive income
are reflected immediately in retained earnings and are not subsequently reclassified in profit or loss.

Gains or losses on financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments issued by the Company that are
designated by the Company as at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss.

/
2.18.4.2 Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. The carrying amounts of financial liabilities that
are subsequently measured at amortised cost are determined based on the effective interest method: Interest
expense that is not capitalised as part of costs of an asset is included in the ‘Finance costs’ line item.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of
allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

2.18.4.3 Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse
the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due in accordance
with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are initially measured at their fair values and, if not

designated as at FVTPL, are subsequently measured at the higher of:

o The amount of loss allowance determined in accordance with impairment requirements of Ind AS 109;
and

¢ The amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognised in
accordance with the principles of Ind AS 18.

2.18.44 Commitments to provide a loan at below-market interest rate

Commitments to provide a loan at below-market interest rate are initially measured at their fair values and, if

not designated as at FVTPL, are subsequently measured at the higher of:

o the amount of loss allowance determined in accordance with impairment requirements of Ind AS 109;
and

o the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognised in
accordance with the principles of Ind AS 115.

2.18.4.5 Foreign exchange gains and losses
For financial liabilities that are denominated in a foreign currency and are measured at amortised cost at the

end of each reporting period, the foreign exchange gains and losses are determined based on the amortised
cost of the instruments and are recognised in ‘Other income’.

\
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The fair value of financial liabilities denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency
and translated at the spot rate at the end of each reporting period. For financial liabilities that are measured
as at FVTPL, the foreign exchange component forms part of the fair value gains or losses and is recognised
in profit or loss.

2.18.4.6 De-recognition of financial liabilities

The Company de-recognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company's obligations are
discharged, cancelled or have expired. An exchange with a lender of debt instruments with substantially
different terms is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a
new financial liability. Similarly, a substantial modification of the terms of an existing financial liability (whether
or not attributable to the financial difficulty of a debtor) is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original
financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

2.18.5 Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date the derivative contracts are entered into and are
subsequently remeasured ta their fair value at the end of each reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss immediately unless the derivative is designated and effective as a hedging
instrument, in which event the timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends on the nature of the hedging
relationship and the nature of the hedged item.

2.18.6 Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non- derivative host contracts that are not financial assets within the scope of Ind
AS 109 are treated as separate derivatives when their risks and characteristics are not closely related to
those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not measured at FVTPL.

2.19 Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the net profit / (loss) for the year attributable to equity holders
of the Company by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the net profit / (loss) attributable to equity holders of the
Company by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted
average humber of Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential Equity shares
into Equity shares.

2.20 New Accounting standards:

New Accounting standards not yet adopted by the Company: Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”") notifies
new standard or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules as issued from time to time. On March 23, 2022, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022, applicable from April 1st, 2022, as below:

i. Ind AS 103 — Reference to Conceptual Framework The amendments specify that to qualify for recognition
as part of applying the acquisition method, the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed must meet
the definitions of assets and liabilities in the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting under Indian
Accounting Standards (Conceptual Framework) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India at
the acquisition date. These changes do not significantly change the requirements of Ind AS 103.

ii. Ind AS 16 ~ Proceeds before intended use The amendments mainly prohibit an entity from deducting from
the cost of property, plant and equipment amounts received from selling items produced while the company
is preparing the asset for its intended use. Instead, an entity will recognise such sales proceeds and related
cost in profit or loss.



DNEG India Media Services Limited

iii. Ind AS 37 — Onerous Contracts - Costs of Fulfilling a Contract The amendments specify that that the ‘cost
of fulfilling’ a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the contract’. Costs that relate directly to a
contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct labour, materials)
or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts.

iv. Ind AS 109 — Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021) The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes
when it applies the ‘10 percent’ test of Ind AS 109 in assessing whether to derecognise a financial liability.

v. Ind AS 116 — Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021) The amendments remove the illustration of the
reimbursement of leasehold improvements by the lessor in order to resolve any potential confusion regarding
the treatment of lease incentives that might arise because of how lease incentives were described in that
illustration. The Company is assessing the impact of these changes and will accordingly incorporate the same
in the financial statements for the year ending March 2023.

3 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Company’s accounting policies, which are described in note 2, the management of
the Company is required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from otherssources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experiences and other factorsthat are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from those estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period,
or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

3.1.1  Revenue recognition

The Company also derives revenues from fixed price VFX and 2D to 3D content conversion contracts. The
revenue recognised on these contracts is dependent on the estimated percentage of completion at a point in
time, which is calculated on the basis of the man days of work performed as a percentage of the estimated
total man days to complete a contract. The actual man days and estimated man days to complete a contract
are updated on a monthly basis.

The estimated man days remaining to complete a project are judgmental in nature and are estimated by
experienced staff using their knowledge of the time necessary to the work.

If a contract is expected to be loss making, based on estimated costs to complete, the expected loss is
recognised immediately.

3.1.2 Taxation

The Company makes estimates in respect of tax liabilities and tax assets. Full provision is made for deferred
and current taxation at the rates of tax prevailing at the year-end unless future rates have been substantively
enacted. These calculations represent our best estimate of the costs that will be incurred and recovered but
actuals may differ from the estimates made and therefore affect future financial results. The effects would be
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Deferred tax assets arise in respect of unutilised losses and other timing differences to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised or to the extent
they can be offset against related deferred tax liabilities. In assessing recoverability, estimation is made of
the future forecasts of taxable profit, including for transactions expected to be consummated during the
current year. If these forecast profits do not materialise, they change, or there are changes in tax rates or to
the period over which the losses or timing differences might be recognised, then the value of deferred tax
assets will need to be revised in a future period.

\“
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3.1.3 Depreciation and useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated over the estimated useful lives of the assets, after taking into
account their estimated residual value. Intangible assets are amortised over its estimated useful lives.
Management reviews the estimated useful lives and residual values of the assets annually in order to
determine the amount of depreciation/ amortisation to be recorded during any reporting period. The useful
lives and residual values are based on the Company’s historical experience with similar assets and take into
account anticipated technological changes. The depreciation/ amortisation for future periods is adjusted if
there are significant changes from previous estimates.

3.1.4 Expected credit losses on financial assets

The impairment provision of financial assets are based on assumption about risk of default and expected
timing of collection. The Company uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to
the impairment calculation, based on the Company's history of collections, customer’s creditworthiness,
existing market condition as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

3.1.5 Provisions

Provisions and liabilities are recognized in the period when it becomes probable that there will be a future
outflow of funds resulting from past operations or events and the amount of cash outflow can be reliably
estimated. The timing of recognition and quantification of the liability require the application of judgement to
existing facts and circumstances, which can be subject to change. Since the cash outflows can take place
many years in the future, the carrying amounts of provisions and liabilities are reviewed regularly and adjusted
to take account of changing facts and circumstances.

3.1.6 Defined benefit obligations

The costs of providing other post-employment benefits are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in
accordance with Ind AS 19 “Employee benefits” over the period during which benefits is derived from the
employees’ services and is determined based on valuation carried out by independent actuary. The costs are
determined based on assumptions selected by the management. These assumptions include salary
escalation rate, discount rates, expected rate of return on assets and mortality rates. Due to the complexities
involved in the valuation and its long term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to change in
these assumptions.

3.1.7 The Company recognises Goodwill that has arisen through business acquisition.

Goodwill is subject to impairment review to ensure that it is not carried above its recoverable value. Review
is performed at least annually at end of each year end or more frequently if events or circumstances indicate
that this is necessary.

Impairment review is performed by comparing the camying value of the cash generating unit with its
recoverable amount, being the higher of value in use and fair value less costs to sell. Value in use is valuation
derived from the discounted future cash flows of cash generating unit. The most important estimates in these
forecast cash flows are the long term growth rates used to calculate revenue growth in perpetuity and the
discount rates which are applied to the future cash flows. These estimates are reviewed at least annually and
are believed to be appropriate. However, changes in these estimates could change the outcomes of the
impairment reviews and therefore affect future financial results. The effects would be recognised in the
Statement of Profit or Loss, through operating profit.

The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations use
pre-tax cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by management covering a five year
period. Cash flows beyond a five year period are extrapolated using the estimated growth rates stated above.
(Refer note 5A)



DNEG INDIA MEDIA SERVICES LIMITED

4 (3) Property, plant and equipment

= in ¥ Lakhs
Plant and Furniture and | Lease Hold Office
| equipment | fixtures Improvement . equipments | Vehi_cles Total
| 1. Gross block _ o ' |
As at April 1, 2021 | 43,814.28 2,841.63 1,534,14 2,577.26 | 2464 | 50,791.95 |
| Additions | 2,917.10 477.37| 9914 1,059.25 | - | 4,552.86 |
,Agustments {refer note b below) ; 684.66 = ‘ - | = 684.66 |
| Deduction | ICEEE) . | o T T - ‘ N GED)
| March 31, 2022 47,364.93 { 3,319.00 | 1,633.28 | 3,636.51 ] 24.§4_| 55,978.36 |
| L] ! . e i | | . =
| 1. Accumulated depreciation ' — _ _ | i ] B
As at April 1, 2021 _ 31,545.89 | 2,133.95 1,187.96 |  1.763.95 | 17.82 36,649.57 |
For the year 3,064.70 470.87 | 157.04 | 801.76 2.73 4,497.10
| Adjustments (refer note b below) 650.60 - | - - - 650.60
Deduction _ @r7ey| - - - - _ (47.74)
_March 31, 2022 | 3521345 2,60 ._sz‘ 1,345.00| 256571 20.55 _ 41,749.53 |
|
Net block (I - 1) (S S S E——
March 31, 2022 B [ 12,151.48 714.18 | 288.28 | 1,070.80 | 409  14,228.83 |
o “Plantand | Furniture and [ Lease Hold Office ]
equipment fixtures Improvement | eqguipments Vehicles Total
1. Gross block — e —— . ——
As atApril 1,2020 N 41,985.32 ~2,618.66 I 1,528.30 | 2,380.95 24.64|  48,537.87
Additions | "2_'544 55| 222,97 4743 196.31 - ~ 3.011.26
‘Deduction (715.59) & || ~(41.59)] = - (757.18)
March 31, 2021 . o 43,814.28 2,841.63 1,534.14 | 2,577.26 24.64 50,791.95
|
1. Accumulated depreciation i - A
As at April 1,2020 ~29,011.34 197384  1,031.27 |  1,504.44 1509 3353648
Fortheyear 2,564.11 | 160.11 195.47 | 25951 | 19.81 | 73,199.01
Deduction . {30.06) - (38.78) - (17.08) (85.92)
'March 31, 2021 31,545.89| 213395 1,187.96 1,763.95 17.82 36,649.57
- e —— - ————— — — — {
Net block (1 - II) | . | - |
March 31 2021 . B - 12,268.39 | 707.68 346.18 813.31 | 6.82 | _14,142.§J
Notes: .
a. Refer note 15 and 17 for assets pledged / hypothecated.
b. Adjustments is on account of completion of lease term and assets getting transferred as owned assets.
4 (b) Capital work in progress (CWIP) ageing schedule:
As at March 31, 2022 I - Amount for a period of ]
Less than 1 more than 3
year 1-2year 2 -3 year ‘ years Total
Project1 - ~ 18.98 I T T 18.98
As at March 31, 2021 - Amountforaperiodof -
Less than 1 more than 3
year 1-2year 2-3year years Total
Project 1 _ . 5.78 | =] i - I A
Note:

There are no capital work in progress where completion is overdue against original planned timelines or where estimated cost exceeded its original
planned cost as on March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021

\o



PNEG INDIA MEDIA SERVICES LIMITED

5A. Goodwill and other Intangible Assets

in ¥ Lakhs
Description of Assets Goodwill ### Software Total
1. Gross block
As at April 1, 2021 19,704.14 591.29 | 20,295.43
Additions = 25.50 | 25.50 |
| Adjustments # - 82.24 | 82.24
| Peductions . S =
March 31, 2022 19,704.14 | 699.03 | 20,403.17
: |
| 3l. Accumulated amortisation and impairment | P ' |
As at April 1, 2021 15,490.98 | 548.93 16,039.91 |
For the year . - 35.77 35.77 |
Adjustments # - 80.81 | 80.81
Deductions = | 20 o]
March 31, 2022 15,490.98 | 665.51 | ~16,156.49
| Net block (1 - ) B - | N _.l_ ———
| March 31, 2022 - 421316 | 3352 4,246.68
[ Description of Assets - Goodwill ### |  Software Total
| I. Gross block . - | N o
| As at April 1, 2020 - 19,704.14 | 591.29 20,295.43
Additions : - | = ——
Deductions - | - -
| March 31, 2021 19,704.14 | "591.29 |  20,295.43 |
1. Accumulated amortisation and impairment - |
As at April 1,2020 = ~ 15,490.98 617.39 |  16,008.37
For the year = - R 31.54 ~ 31.54
Deductions - = =
March 31, 2021 - ~ T 15,490.98 548.93 16,039.91
Net block (I - IT) _
March 31, 2021 N 4,213.16 | 42.36 4,265.52|

Notes:

# Adjustments is on account of completion of lease term and assets getting transferred as owned assets

#H5¢ On June 30, 2014, the Company (through the amalgamated company namely DNEG Creative Services Limited) acquired the
“backend business” of providing services of 2D to 3D conversion and visual special effects (“VFX") from Prime Focus Ltd, the
ultimate holding company on a going concern basis by way of slump sale for a total consideration of ¥ 22,970.49 lakhs. On
allocation of purchase consideration to the assets and liabilities taken over, the difference between the purchase consideration
and the fair/ book value of net assets acquired aggregating

¥ 19,704.14 lakhs was accounted for as ‘Goodwill’. The recoverable amount of Goodwill has been determined at the balance
sheet date on a value in use calculation which uses cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by the Directors
and valuation exercise carried out by an independent valuer. The projections cover a period of five years, which is considered to
be the most appropriate timescale over which to review and consider annual performances before applying a fixed terminal value
multiple to the final year cash flows. The growth rates used to estimate future performance are based on the conservative
estimates from past performance. EBITDA margins are based on historical performance and Company's strategies.

Weighted Average Cost of Capital % (WACC) = Risk free return + (Market risk premium x Beta variant for the Company).

Following key assumptions were considered white performing impairment testing:

Long term sustainable growth rates
Weighted Average Cost of Capital % (WACC) after tax

2022 |

2.00%|
11.37%|

Based on the above, the Company has concluded that the goodwill amount is fully recoverable as on March 31, 2022.
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5B. Right of Use Assets

- in T Lakhs
Plant and Office
Description of Assets equipment Building equipments Software Total
I Gross Block - - - i o I
AS at April 1, 2021 17,541.85 8,014.55 | 3.60 224.26 25,784.26 |
Addiions S 472931 281586 | 161 - 7,546.78 |
Adustments# (584.66) | = (62.24) ~ (768.90)
Deletions © (14.36) (430.85)) S W (445.21)
Mearch 31, 2022 2157244  10,399.56 | 5.21 142.02|  32,118.93
I8. Accumulated Depreciation N — B T B Nal
As at April 1, 2021 9,768.74 2,786.60 | 342 217.35 | 12,776.11
For the year 2,308.48 2,070.63 | 153 | - 220 4,382.84
Additions on business combination i E - | [ —— _'-__|
Adjustments # = (650.43) =S = (80.81) (731.24)
Deletions (10.56) (316.62) - - {327.18)
March 31,2022 11,416.23 4,540.61 495 138.74 16,100.53 |
Netblock (I-0) ) - ” B 5 f=
[Miarch 31, 2022 . 10,155.91 5,858.95 0.26 3.28 16,018.40 |
B Plant and Office
B Description of Assets equipment Building equipments Software Total

1. Gross Block - .
As at April 1, 2020 N 17,475.19 7,520.48 | 3.60 224.26 25,223.53
Additions 66661 122278 - - 1,289.44
Deletions S 3 (728.71) - - (728.71)
March 31, 2021 17,541.85 8,014.55 3.60 224.26 25,784.26
Ii. Accumulated Depreciation
As at April 1, 2020 6,789.86 | 1,607.56 | 248 205.26 ~ 8,695.16
Forthe year S| 297888 | 1,665.79 | 0.94 | 1209 ~4,657.70 |
Deletions o - (576.75) - - (576.75)
March 31, 2021 9,768.74 2,786.60 3.42 217.35 12,776.11
Net block (1 - ) B e T = e
March 31, 2021 7,773.11 5,227.95 0.18 6.91 13,008.15 |

# Adjustments is on account of completion of lease term and assets getting transferred as owned assets
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DNEG INDIA MEDIA SERVICES LIMITED

6. Non-current Investment

-

Unquoted equity instrument, fully paid up (at cost)
_Inv estment in subsidiaries:

March 31, 2022

|
| ——
1

in % Lakhs
March 31, 2021

|
|

Pnrne Focus A Academy of Media ar and Entertalnment Studles Private Limited - 1,501.00 : 1,501.00
!20 000 equity shares of  10/- each. . . _ I |
- - S _ EORET 1,501.00 | 1,501.00
7. Other non-current financial assets (Unsecured, considered good) in X Lakhs
| March 31, 2022 | March 31,2021 |
| Deposits to related parties (Refer note 31) a 530 00 | 4,973.58
| Deposits to others 83785,  964.16
Others * - ~800.00 | 800.00
I - 1 2,167.85 | 6,737.74
* Others include participation rights in box office collection for feature films
8. Other non-current assets (Unsecured, considered good) ) in ¥ Lakhs
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Capital advances I N - N 119.50 354.67
Prepaid expenses 4.48 95.25
chl 123.98 449,92
9. Trade receivable (Unsecured) in ¥ Lakhs
March 31,2022 | March 31, 2021
Trade receivable (refer note 31) 42,318.12 13,060.68
Less: allowances (2,436.96) (2,839.49)
39,881.16 10,221.19
The movement in allowance for bad and doubtful debts is as follows: m ) B i
Balance as at the beginning of the year - i 2,839.49 | '2,614.39
Allowances made during the year (402.53) 225.10
"Balance as at the end of the year S 2,436.96 2,839.49 |
Trade receivables - ageing and other details
B Undisputed trade receivables
o Considered Which have
As at March 31, 2022 good significant risk Credit impaired
Less than 6 months 38,903.28 - -
6 months - 1 year 39123 - | -
[1-3year 471.18 167.54 -
[More than 3 years - ] 11547 |  2,269.42 | -
|Total e s 39 ,881. 16  2,436.96 -
- Undisputed trade receivables
T N “Considered Which have
As at March 31, 2021 good significant risk Credit impaired
Less than 6 months S 8,572.61 - -
6 months - 1 year - 79269 | | | -
1-3year 809.67 296.00 -
More than 3 years - ~ 46.22 2,543.49 -
Total 10,221.19 2,839.49 -
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10- Cash and cash equivalents

in Lakhs

| March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021 |

' a. Cash and cash equivalents - = | _
| Cash on hand B B 0.48 0.51]
| Bank balances ) - - o - |
|_In Current Accounts B 469.64 1,490.31
| Bank balances other than above ‘s & I I | |
| In deposits - - 4,000.00
[ | 47042 5,490.82
| b. Bank balances other than (ajabove | ]
| In deposits * [ ———— - ' 560.52 526.45
. - o 560.52 526.45
* pertains to fixed deposits provided as security towards bank guarantees issued.
11. Other current financial assets (Unsecured, considered good) in T Lakhs
March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Unbilled revenue (refer note 31) 3,023.13 6,267.81
Export incentives receivable 721.22 475.00
Interest Accrued on bank deposits 3.89 5.79
Advances to related parties (Refer note 31) 364.94 275.55
‘Deposits to related parties (Refer note 31) 786.56 786.56
Security deposits to others
Considered good 107.86 225.77
Doubitful 97.60 97.60
Total 205.46 323.37
Less: Provision for doubtful advances (97.60) (97.60)
Total Security deposits to others (net) 107.86 225.77
Others * gn 1,219.26 4,458.20
6,226.86 12,494.68

A Others include participation rights in box office collection for feature films and expenses recoverable from third party

12. Other assets (Current) in ¥ Lakhs
- March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Prepaid expenses - 255.71 137.17

Advances to suppliers

Considered good 97.39 129.91
Doubtful 50.47 50.47
Total 147.86 180.38

Less: Provision for doubtful advances (50.47) (50.47)
Total advances to suppliers (net) 97.39 129.91

' Others # 4,352.47 293799 |
4,705.57 3,205.07

# Others include loans and advances to employees, service tax receivables and GST input credit.

W
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1 3. Equity share capital

(#) Authorised and issued share capital in T Lakhs
March 31,2022 = March 31, 2021

Authorised [post amalgamation): -

98,250,000 Shares of Z 10/- each 9,825.00 9,825.00

| 1,200,000 10% Redeemable Non-Convertible Preference shares of Re. 1 each _ 1200 12,00
9837.00  9,837.00 |

| Issued, subscribed and paid-Up: - A i —
| 98,079,600 (Previous year 98,079,600 Shares) of Z 10/- each _ 980796 |  5807.96 |
_ - 9,807.96 9,807.96 |
(ii) Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding -
' ) ' March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 |
| NoofShares | in¥Lakhs | NoofShares |  in¥ Lakhs |
/At the beginning of the year . 98,079,600 | 9,807.96 | - -
{ - - 98,079,6001 9,807.96
|Shares issued during the previous year (Refer note below) N i | B
|At the end of the year — | 98079600, 980796 | 98079600 |  9807.96 |

Note:
98,079,600 Shares of ¥ 10/- each were allotted to Prime Focus World N.V. as part of scheme of amalgamation (refer note 41) .

(ifi) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares

The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of ¥ 10 each. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held. The
dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in
case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after
distribution of all liabilities, in proportion to their shareholding.

(iv) Disclosure of Shareholding of Promoters:

o - __March31,2022 March 31, 2021
o _ No of shares % of total No of shares % of total shares
Promoterpame | shares | | ] B |
Prime Focus World N.V. 98,079,600 ‘ 100% 98,079,600 100%
(including shares held by its nominees) ] - _ e | S
Total = _ 98,079,600 | 100% 98,079,600 100%
14. Other equity in ¥ Lakhs

| March 31,2022 | March 31,2021 |
Securities premium | ——— —
As per last balance sheet ) 36,844.62 36,844.62
i ) 36,844.62 36,844.62

=

| Capital reserve - _ . I
As per last balance sheet (62,296.86) (35,470.14)

Movement during the year (Refer note 37) . (26,826.72)

= N - A - ) - (62,296.86) (62,296.36)
|

Retained earnings * _ 1 T

As per last balance sheet _ o | (1610568)[ (16,654.20)

Add: Total comprehensive income for the year 8,043.48 548.52

. T ' T o - {8,062.20) " (16,105.68)

* Includes Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations (net of tax), gain / (loss) of 2 (351.30) lakhs (Previous year T (226.55) lakhs).
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—

15. Non Current Borrowings in ¥ Lakhs
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Term Loan from Banks (Secured) (Refer note a) _ 2,399.00 E
Loans from related parties in foreign currency (Unsecured) (refer note (b) and 31) 9,693.86 18,433.77
' 11,992.86 18,433.77
Notes: - ) ' !

a) Working Capital Term Loan facility obtained in India is 100% Credit Guaranteed by National Credit Guarantee Trust Company
Limited under Emergency Credit Line Guarantee Scheme. It carries second charge over present and future current assets,
movable fixed assets and properties of Parent's India business (excluding specific assets charged against finance lease),
second charge by way of pledge over 30% shares of Prime Focus Technologies and pledge of shares of the Parent held by
Parent's promoters. Tenor of the loan is 8 years from September 2021, repayable in 48 equal instalments after moratorium of

2 years. Interest rate applicable is 1% over 1 year MCLR subject to cap of 9.25%. -

b) Loans from related parties are long term unsecured loans availed from its fellow subsidiary company at an interest rate of
€qual to six months LIBOR + 350 bps at the time of drawdown of loan. Amount of ¥8,089.41 lakhs (Previous year ¥8,168.69
lakhs) is payable at the end of 3 years from drawdown and balance is payable at the end of 5 years from drawdown. Interest is
payable annually in arrears.

_ 16.frovis_ions_(N9n Current) _ - _ ) o in?Lak_hE
March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021 ]

. I
[Provision for employee benefits _ !
| Provision for gratuity (Refer note 29) ' ' 2,750.31 | 2,130.40
[ S ' ©2,750.31 | ~2,130.40 |

e = S —————,

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which any provision was required for
foreseeable losses.

17. Borrowings (Current) ] ] - - B - in ¥ Lakhs
B _ | March 31,2022 | March 31,2021
|Short-term demand loan (Secured) [

Invoice discounting facility (refer note (a)) _ ‘ 5,894.52 | : 1,935.59

|

Current maturities of long term borrowings

Loans from related parties in foreign currency (Unsecured) (refernote 16(b)) |~ 949203 -
Short-term demand loan (Unsecured) — 1
Loans from related parties (refer note (b) and note 31) 985.19 104323

16,371.74 2,978.82

Notes:

a. The Company has availed post shipment credit in foreign currency against the sanctioned limit of ¥ 60 crores at a rate of
interest ranging from 3.6% to 5.6% p.a. and for a tenor up to 6 months from Yes Bank Ltd. The above facility is secured
against, (i) First pari passu charge on current assets and movable fixed assets of the Company; (ii) Pledge of shares of the
ultimate holding company held by promoters; (iii) Corporate guarantee of Prime Focus World NV; (iv) Corporate guarantee of
the ultimate holding company; (v) Personal guarantee of the promoters of ultimate holding company; (vi) Pledge of 30%
shares of subsidiaries and group companies viz: the Company, Prime Focus Technologies Limited, PF World Limited,
Mauritius, Prime Focus Luxembourg s.a.r.l., Prime Focus 3D Cooperartief U.A., Prime Focus Technologies Inc. (USA), DAX
PFT LLC (USA), Prime Focus Technologies UK Limited, Prime Post (Europe) Limited and Dneg India Media Services Limited
held by the ultimate holding company directly or indirectly. At the year end March 31, 2022, the outstanding is % 5,894.52 lakhs
and as at March 31, 2021, the outstanding was  1,935.59 lakhs.

b. Loans from related parties are short term unsecured loans availed from a subsidiary company at an interest rate of 10%-
15% and are repayable on demand.



DNEG INDIA MEDIA SERVICES LIMITED

_18. Trade payables

‘Trade payables to other than Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises

_ Due to group companies (Refer Note 31)

“Note:

2,017.37 |

406.97

2',4_'2‘4.54_'_

in ¥ Lakhs

| March 31,2022 | March 31,2021

. 2,475.40
1,016.79
3,492.19

According to the records available with the Company, there were no transactions and dues payable to entities that are
classified as Micro and Small Enterprises under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 for all the

above periods.

Trade Payables - ageing and other details

in ¥ Lakhs
As at March 31, As at March 31,
2022 2021
Accruals 863.21 1,076.46
Not due 40.87 23.57
Less than 6 months 1,396.18 1,694.86
6 months - 1 year 0.88 285.17
1-3year 123.20 299.81
More than 3 years - 112.32
Total 2,424.34 3,492.19
19. Other current financial Liabilities in ¥ Lakhs
— .| March31,2022 | March 31,2021
Accrued salaries and benefits 5,198.46 3,860.41
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 200.01 479.34
Due to group companies (Refer Note 31) 982.04 848.35
Capital Creditors (Refer Note 31) 797.86 921.35
Deferred Consideration (Refer Note 31) 47,341.34 52,112.38
54,519.71 58,221.83

Note:

There are no amounts due for payment to the Investor Education and Protection Fund under Section 125 of the Companies
Act, 2013 as at March 31, 2022 (March 31, 2021: Nil)

20. Current g;gg[s_l_ons

in  Lakhs

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for gratuity (Refer note 29) 52.36 47.96
52.36 47.96

Note:

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which any provision was required for

foreseeable losses

21. Other current liabilities in  Lakhs
o o - March 31,2022 | March 31, 2021
Deferred revenue (refer note 31) 12,764.13 7.817.38
Deposits from customers - - 400.03  262.88
Statutory dues 679.49 | 396.15 |
Others - B 562 241.46 |

T 13,849.27 8,717.87 |

—




DNEG INDIA MEDIA SERVICES LIMITED

22. Revenue from operations
|
Sale le of servnces (refer note 31)

_I__ Management Fees Income (refer note 31)
I Export incentives

_ 23. Othe_r _inc9r|_1e

| Interest |ncome from financial assets held at amortised cost:

_ in ¥ Lakhs
March 31,2022 | March 31, 2021
72,518.77 | 54,557.06 | |
| |
1,101.14 1 -
301.22 1_ ___ -
73,921.13 | §4_ 57. (_)6
_in ¥ Lakhs

_ March 31,2022 |

March 31, 2021 |

_Interest Income on bank deposit 49.12 | 24.65 |

__Interest Income - On Income Tax Refunds o - 8.8
Interest Income - Others - N 85.94 107.10
~ Exchange gain (net 408.39 B
| Provision for doubtful debts written back 402.53 =

Profit oni sale of property, plant and equipments 42.86

Liability / provision no longer require written back 301.79 490.69
Miscellaneous income 60.75 42.35
1,361.38 672.97

24. Employee benefits expense in ¥ Lakhs

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Salaries and wages 41,760.81 29,672.47
Gratuity (Refer Note 29) 750.43 625.26
Stock Option expense (Refer Note 31) (0.32) 5.99
Contribution to provident and other funds (Refer Note 29) 827.27 805.90
Staff welfare expenses 166.89 54.14
43,505.08 31,163.76

25. Finance costs in T Lakhs

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Interest on term loan 90.71 -
Interest on lease liabilities 1,495.93 1,770.60
Interest on working capital finance 214.04 114.90
Interest on related party loans (Refer Note 31) 952.19 649.68
Interest on others 64.16 24.06
Bank charges 10.57 46.84

2,827.60 2,606.08
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DNEG INDIA MEDIA SERVICES LIMITED

_26. Other expenses in ¥ Lakhs
March 31,2022 | March 31, 2021
Rent (refer note 31) 1,985.74 2,751.01
. Electricity charges 1,918.33 2,181.51
| Technical service cost - 1,233.17 | ~ 507.46
Legal and professional fees I 128.38 289.50
| House-keeping charges 3 14038 |  122.26
i _Communication charges N . 51877 433.45
| Travelling and conveyance expense 38| 155.85
| Commission & Brokerage 11.40 5.00
{ Secunty charges i 214.25 | 206.49
| Technician fees - - 118247 1,036.84 |
| Insurance cost e 140.84 114.39 |
r 'Rates and taxes _ 153.47 183, 68 |
Repglr_s & Maintenance - Equipments - _ 286.99 310.44
_Repairs & Maintenance - Building ) 480.54 424.65
_Repairs & Maintenance - Vehicles e 18.57 7.68
_Provision for doubtful debts - - 22511
Exchange gain (net) 12.53 958.07
Bad debts written off 675.57 34.27
Bad & doubtful advances/ balances written off 900.00 - 2,717.01
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipments - 18.96
Payments to auditor
Audit fees 25.00 25.00
Miscellaneous expenses 1,277.26 427.15
[ 11,618.07 13,135.78 |

"
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27 - Tax expense

a. Tax expense / (credit) recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss in % Lakhs
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Curtrent tax :
CurTent tax in respect of earlier years (1.08)

Deferred Tax 4 248.90 (8.29)
Total tax expense/ (credit) recognised in statement of profit and loss 247.82 (8.29)
b. Income tax expense / (credit) recognised in other comprehensive income in ¥ Lakhs
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Re-measurement of defined benefit obligation (24.56) 35.01
Income tax expense / (credit) recognised in other comprehensive income (24.56) 35.01

c. The income tax expenses for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:

in T Lakhs

) March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Proftbefore tax 8,416.05 436.16
Applicable Tax rate 2517% 25.17%
Cormputed tax expense 2,118.15 109.77

Tax Effect of: — _ .
Effect of tax deductions, not routed through Statement of Profit and Loss - (237.98)
Utilisation of brought forward losses on which deferred tax asset was not

recognised earlier - 120.38

Previously unrecognised deferred tax asset/ liability on temporary differences (380.79) (112.97)
Common control business combinations accounted for as per Appendix C of

Ind AS 103 (Refer note 37) (1,396.12) 89.11

Others (93.42) 23.40

‘Tax (credit) recognised in statemeiit of profit and loss ' 247.82 (8.29)

The tax rate used for reconciliation above is the corporate tax rate payable by corporate entities in India on taxable profit
under the Income tax laws.

d. Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities in ¥ Lakhs
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Deferred tax (assets) on temporary differences (3,851.71) (4,076.05)

(3,851.71) (4,076.05)

&
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in 7 Lakhs
March 31, Recognised | Recognised | March 31, Recognised | Recognised March 3,
2020 in Profit/ | In OCI during 2021 in Profit/  in OCIl during 2022
Loss during 2020-21 Loss during 2021-22
2020-21 2021-22
|

[Deferred tax liability i | E _ | |
\Difference between tax books and written down 1,180,22 0.42 - 1,180.64 795.66 - | 1,976.30 |
\vaalue of PPE, other intangible assets and right | |
of_Use assels ! . I - | I | — - f
. —om | 1,180.22 | 0.42 | 1,180.64 | 796.66 | | 1,976.30
Deferred tax asset f ! . ____| ! |
\Provisian for gratuity / bonus/ leave provision | 437.34 | 359.30 (35.01)] 76163 | 212,85 | 24,56 999,04
\Pravision for doubtful advances and debts 469.02 | 24,60 | - | 484 52 156.08 1 - 650,60
Leraise Deposit Discounting & Equalisation | 88.48 | (13.25) - | 75.23 4D a3 - 115.68
|Merger related expenses | 19.81 | (4.95) - 14.86 (2.11)l - 12.75 |
[Lease liabilities | 911.35 (14.24), - 897.11 | 734.37 | - | 1,631.48 |
|Unabsorbed depreciation and carried forward | 3,356.09 | (342, ?5)| - 3,013.34 (594.76) - 2,418.58
llosses | W | k| |
[ 5,282.99 | 8.7 I_ " (35.01)] 5,256.69 | 546.76 | 2456 |  5,828.01

| (at0277)  (8.29)  3501|  (4,076.05) 248.90 | (24.56)]  (3,851.71)

Note: The Company is mainly a cost plus entity rendering services to its immediate holding company and other fellow sub5|d|anes has been profitable over the
years and the revenue from operations have continued to grow in recent years. Hence, there is reasonable certainty on utilisation of unabsorbed depreciation,
thereby deferred tax asset is recognised.,

28, Earnings per share = TNl S E— — ___in ¥ Lakhs

Particulars March 31, March 31, '
! . o o o . 2022 2021 |
| Net Profit as per Statement of Profit and Loss attributable to Equity Shareholders = 8,16823 | = 44445
| —— _. —— . . Number |  Number
| Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating basic and diluted EPS - 98,079,600 | 98,079,600 |
| Earnings per share o - !

Basic EPS () 8.33 045
| Diluted EPS ) B - - 8.33 0.45
| Face value per share_ 10.00 10.00

29. Employee benefits

a. Defined contribution plans

The Company's defined contribution plans are provident fund, Employee State Insurance and employees’ pension scheme (under the provisions of the
Employees' Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952).

Contribution to Defined Contribution Plans, recognised as exp for the year is as under: . __in¥Lakhs
| March 31, ‘ March 31, |
T —— S | a022 | 202 |
| Employer's contribution to provident and other funds 827.27 | 805.90 |

b. Defined benefit plans

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan (unfunded) for qualifying employees of its operations in India. The defined benefit plan is administered by the
Company. Under this plan, the employee is entitled to a lump-sum payment upon retirement from the services of the Company. An employee becomes eligible to
receive payment upon completion of 5 years of service at the rate of 15 days of service for each completed year of service.

These plans typlcally expose the Company to actuarial risks such as; interest rate risk, longevity risk and salary risk.

[ Interest risk |A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability.

Longevity risk The present value of the defined benefit plan I|ab|||ty is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the|
I mortality of the plan participants both during and after their employment. An increase in the life expectancy of
| the plan panicipan(s will increase the plan Iiability ‘
| Salary risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan|

participants, As such an increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.

No other post-retirement benefits are provided to the employees.
In respect of the said plan, the most recent actuarial valuation of the defined benefit obligation were carried out by an external expert, who is a duly registered

actuary. The present value of the defined benefit obligation and the retated current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the projected unit
credit method.
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i) Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of Defined Benefit Obligation: in ¥ Lakhs
March 2022 March 2021
Defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 2,178.36 1,877.65
Interest cost 161,06 121.53
Cdrrent service cost 589.37 503.73
Benefits paid (275.43) (185.47)
Actuarial losses on obligations - due to change in financial assumptions (0.37) 6.74
Actuarial (gains) / losses on obligations - due to experience 149.68 (145.82)
Defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 2,802.67 2,178.36
ii) Expense recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss: in ¥ Lakhs
March 2022 March 2021
Current service cost 589.37 503.73
Net interest cost 161.06 121.53
Expenses recognized 750.43 625.26
ili) Expenses recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) in ¥ Lakhs
March 2022 March 2021
Actuarial (gain) / loss 149.31 (139.08)
Net (gain) / loss recognized in OCI 149.31 | (139.08)
iv) Actuarial assumptions: in T Lakhs
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Rate of discounting (p.a.) 6.87% 6.89%
' Rate of salary increase (p.a.) 7.00% 7.00%

For service 2 years For service 2 years
and below 20.00% | and below 20.00%
p.a. p.a.

For service 3 years | For service 3 years
to 4 years 10.00%  to 4 years 10.00%
p.a. p.a.

For service 5 years  For service 5 years
and above 2.00% | and above 2.00%

Attrition rate (p.a.) - P-8-
Indian Assured Indian Assured
Lives Lives Mortality
Mortality 2012-14 (2006-08) Ult
Mortality table (Urban)

The discount rates reflect the prevailing market yields of Indian Government securities as at the Balance Sheet date for the
estimated term of the obligations.

The estimates of future salary increase, considered in actuarial valuation, take into account, inflation, seniority, promotions
and other relevant factors, such as demand and supply in the employment market.

v) Sensitivity analysis of the defined benefit obligations:

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions
constant, would have affected the defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below:

in ¥ Lakhs
March 2022 March 2021
Increase in Decrease in Increase in Decrease in
assumption assumption assumption assumption
Discount rate (1% movement) (387.30) 473.41 (304.56) 376.07
Future salary appreciation (1%
movement) 431.81 (370.14) 357.90 (299.97)
Attrition rate (1% movement) 2.32 5.28 (17.34) 18.07

The above information is as per the report of the actuary.
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30. Financial instruments

a. Capital Risk Management
The objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the ability to continue as a going concern to provide returns
for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of
capital.

The management sets the amounts of capital required in proportion to risk. The Company manages its capital
structure and adjusts it in light of changes in economic conditions and risk characteristics of the underlying assets.

The capital structure consists of borrowings (as detailed in note 15 and 17), and equity (comprising issued capital,
reserves and retained earnings as detailed in statement of changes in shareholders' equity). The debt equity ratio for
current year is 0.74 (March 31, 2021: 0.7).

Consequent to the common control business combination given effect to in the previous year, which resulted in
creation of debit balance in capital reserve, the Company has a negative net worth as at March 31, 2022. The
consideration payable to the shareholders of the combining entities, has primarily resuited in a negative net working
capital as on the balance sheet date. The Company is mainly a cost plus entity rendering services to its immediate
holding company and other fellow subsidiaries, has been profitable over the years and the revenue from operations
have continued to grow in recent years.

The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.

b. Financial risk management objectives
A wide range of risks may affect the Company’s business and financial results. Amongst other risks that could have
significant influence on the Company are market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Board of Directors of the Company manage and review the affairs of the Company by setting up short term and
long-term budgets by monitoring the same and taking suitable actions to minimise potential adverse effects on its
operational and financial performance.

¢. Market risk
The Company is primarily exposed to the following market risks.
i. Foreign currency risk management

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates
primarily to the Company’s operating activities (when revenue or expense is denominated in a foreign currency).

The Company's foreign currency ex

posure as at year end is as follows:

March 31, 2022

_ March 31, 2021

Total

Total

A i
Foreign Foreign “Foreign I
cum.enc){ currency currency |
denomination| i\ 1akp) in T lakhs (in lakh) in Z lakhs
Financial Assets - Usb | 6040 4,584.23 46.38]  3,396.08
s CAD 013 798 4
GBP 303.99 30,346 45| 10262  10,344.84
B 34,938.65 13,740.92
Financial Liabilites . usb | 52,23, 3,963.98/ 12.43 910.22
- CAD I 061 37.06] 0.61] 3545
| oep 22122]  22,083.84 20298 20,461.84
i SGD _ - - 0.17 9.33
EUR 2.68 225.38 2.59| 22211
R i | 26,310.26] ol 21,638.95
Net Exposure | 8,628.39] (7,898.03)

The Company's sensitivity to a 5% appreciation/depreciation of above mentioned foreign currencies with respect to

Rupee would result in decrease/ increase in the Company’s net profit before tax by approximatelyZ 423.04 Lakhs for
the year ended March 31, 2022 (March 31, 2021: increase / decrease by¥ 394.9 Lakhs respectively). This sensitivity
analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items.
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i#. Interest rate risk management

The Company is not exposed significantly to interest rate risk because it borrows funds in the form of invoice
discounting facility at floating interest rates determined on the date of disbursement, funds from related parties
at floating rates and term loans with capping on interest rates.

iii. Credit risk management

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a client or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to
meet its contractual obligations and arises principally from the Company’s receivables from customers.
Management has a credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored on an on-going basis.

The Company has a low credit risk in respect of its trade receivables, as its principal customers are group
companies.

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to
credit risk was ¥ 50,046.30 Lakhs and % 36,124.56 Lakhs as at March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021
respectively, being the total of the carrying amount of the balances with banks, bank deposits, investments
excluding equity investments, trade receivables, unbilled revenue and other financial assets.

d. Liquidity risk management

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its financial obligations timely.
Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company's liquidity position (comprising of undrawn bank
facilities and cash and cash equivalents) on the basis of expected cash flows. This monitoring includes financial
ratios and takes into account the accessibility of cash and cash equivalents.

The table below analyses the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities. The following break up is
based on the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual discounted cash flows.

\,

- in T Lakhs
March 31, 2022 Ressitaamy) "Ectcsn Total |
b e 1year |1to5years 1
Borrowings = =n"a » | 18371.74| 11,992.86 |  28,364.60 |
Lease liabilities B ~ 5587.60 | 10,899.74 16,487.34 |
Trade payables ) 242434 - 2,424.34 |
Other financial liabilities | 54,519.71 = 54,519.71 |
B - o 78,903.39 | 22,892.60 | 101,795.99 |

in ¥ Lakhs
March 31, 2021 Eessitian [ Eeteeen Total |
__1year |1to5years| |

Borrowings - B | 2978.82| 18,433.77 | 2141259
 Lease liabilities | 527547 922008  14,495.55
| Trade payables S [ 349219 - | 3,492.19 |
Other financial liabilities 58,221.83 - 58,221.83 |
S - ~|769,968.31 | 27,653.85 | 9‘/’,622.1‘6“|



DNEG INDIA MEDIA SERVICES LIMITED

©. Fair value measuraments in ¥ Lakhs
Carrying value Fair value

. March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 Fair value hierarchy
Financial Aszels

15 measus 1 faft vl |
Other financial assets | 80000 800.00 80000 800 00 Level 3
Ty i i =

Trade rocejvables 39,881.16 | 10;221.19 | . - |

ash and cash equivalants W _amaz) 549082 | < =

Bank balancas olher than cash and cash equivalenis _ 560.52 | 526.45 | = | =. | |

nvestments —=r ~ asotgo|  agoteo| . . .
| Other financi —— 759471 | iB4324z | - - -
Total

5080751 36,971.88 | 800.00 800.00 | |

Financial Liabilitles: | . | — —d 1 |
ial [inbililizs meas B i ) | |

fian

| Borrowings —=— = ; 26,364.60 21,412.59 = -
_Lease liabilitles i 16.487.34 14.495.55 - = -
Trad 242430 £ 349219 | |-
ancia) iabilities i il 5451971 | 5622183 | . :
il fiabilitles | tot7sses|  e7es2de| - | - |
(& 1 to the contral busi L ion givan affect to in the pravious year, which Ited in tion of debil in capital reserve, ihe
Company has a negatlive net worth as al March 31, 2022. The consideration payable to the shareholders of the bining entilies, has primaril lted in a negati
nel working capital as on the balance sheet date. The Company is malnly a cost plus entity rendering services to ils immediate holding company and other fellow
subsidiaries, has been profilable over the years and the from operations have inued to grow in recent years.
Basls of valuat hnique for level 3 I, fal Instr | in ¥ Lakhs
T P S S 1 = e 1 1 ——— F_.Ir v.lu._ : ——Tra Rllnhmlhlp_o_l
Financlal Assets March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 techniques and |unobservable Inputs to
hlerarchy K
— e — | keyinputs |  falrvalue
.
:Undlscoumed cash Higher the estimated
Hlow Basedion Iheatrical box office
Revenus paricipalion in movies 800.00 800.00 |Level3d |estimated theatrical \hie higihi
| box office parformance; the higher
|ia the fair value
| perfermance |
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3. Related party disclosures
2. List of related parties where control exists, irrespective of transactions

Ultimate Holding Company
Prime Focus Limited

Intermediate holding companies
PF World Limited

Prime Focus Luxembourg S.a.r.|
Prime Focus 3D Co-operatief U.A.

Immediate Holding company
Prime Focus World N.V.

Subsidiary companies
Prime Focus Academy of Media and Entertainment Studies Private Limited

List of related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year
Ultimate Holding company
Prime Focus Limited

Immediate Holding company
Prime Focus World N.V.

Fellow subsidiaries
Prime Focus International Services UK Limited
Prime Focus Technologies Limited
Double Negative Limited
Double Negative Canada Productions Limited
Double Negative Montreal Productions Limited
Redefine FX Limited (formerly known as Re:Define FX Limited) (merged w.e.f 1st April, 2021 with
Double Negative Montreal Productions Limited)
Lowry Digital Imaging Service Inc.
Double Negative LA LLC
PF Digital Media Services Limited (Merged with Prime Focus Limited) (w.e.f. 01.04.21)
DNEG North America Inc
Jam8 Prime Focus LLP

Subsidiary companies
Prime Focus Academy of Media and Entertainment Studies Private Limited

Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by Key Management Personnel or their relatives
and where Company had transactions during the reporting period
Blooming Buds Coaching Private Limited

Key Management Personnel
Merzin Tavaria (M/s Luminosity)

\o
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b. List of transactions with related parties during the year

| f L - >

|Borrowings taken

|Double Negative Limited

\Prime Focus Academy of Media and Entertainment Studies Private Limited
|Short-term borrowings repaid n S ——
Prime Focus Academy of Media and Entertainment Studies Private Limited

ggc_tgi_tmp_osits given
Prime Focus Limited

ggcuri_t_y deposits received back
Prime Focus Limited

Rent expense N
Prime Focus Limited .
Blooming Buds Coaching Private Limited

Finance costs_

Prime Focus Academy of Media and Entertainment Studies Private Limited
Double Negative Limited

'Stock Option Expense
Prime Focus World NV

Purchase of India Production Services Bus_ineg(i_ncluding ﬂ_ogking capital adjustrhent)
| Prime Focus Limited

Reimbursement of expenses incurred by
Prime Focus Technologies Limited
Prime Focus Limited

Prime Focus International Services UK Limited
Double Negative Canada Productions Limited

Prime Focus Academy of Media and Entertainment Studies Private Limited

Reimbursement of expenses incurred for .
Prime Focus Academy of Media and Entertainment Studies Private Limited
Prime Focus Limited S
Double Negative Limited .
Double Negative Montreal Productions Limited
Prime Focus Technologies Limited -
Prime Focus World NV
Jam8 Prime Focus LLP

Technician Fees

Management Fees Income
Double Negative Limited

Revenue - -
Prime Focus International Services UK Limited
Double Negative Limited B

Double Negative Canada Productions Limited
Redefine FX Limited -

Double Negative Montreal Productions Limited

DNEG North America Inc

Sale of assets -
Double Negative Montreal Productions Limited

Purchase of assets - -
Prime Focus International Services UK Limited

\\

in% Lakhs
March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021 |
|
= 1l 5,623.72 |
10.00 | =
!
| .
129.25 | 252.21
i L
- ~19,355.00
) =
I 4,443.58 | 17,815.00
1,377.23 | 1,338.78
455.44 | 433.76
- 6801, 11938
88418 | 530.30
|
i, _
(0.32)] 5.99
37,948.59 | -
27.67 64.43
453.54 | 399.22 |
367 =
. 0.16
0.09 =
0.62 |
6.32
142.12
7800 6433
1,101.14 | — 5
179490 |  754.67
3522298 |  33,700.01
3,921.86 | 2,409.76 |
z 4.949.14 |
1961043 |  6,017.07 |
- 0.56
[
~ ese| -
S 23060
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¢. Balance outstanding at the year end

|Loans received (including interest)

in % Lakhs

March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021

|Prime Focus Academy of Media and Entertainment Studies Private Limited 985.19 1,043.23
|Double Negative Limited 19,085.89 | 18,433.77
Security deposits receivable . o " - |
Prime Focus Limited o 786.56 5,230.15 |
Blooming Buds Coaching Private Limited 530.00 530.00
Trade payables and other current liabilities |
Prime Focus Limited . 428.02 699.26
Prime Focus Technologies Limited 12.48 75.22 |
|Double Negative Montreal Productions Limited 34.20 32.70 |
|Double Negative Canada Productions Limited 2.87 2.74
Prime Focus World N.V. 879.29 848.35
Prime Focus Academy of Media and E Entertalnment Studies Private Limited 0.08 | =
_I?rlme Focus International Services UK lentgd_ _— 221.09 | 249.19 |
Merzin Tavaria (M/s Luminosity) - L 7.02 | 7.18
Advances to related parties N B o — |
\Prime Focus Technologies Limited 3.83 B -
"Prime Focus Academy of Media and Entertainment ¢ Studies Private Limited S 0 03 % 0.41
'Lowry Digital Imaging Service Inc o . 283 64 | 273.66
Prime Focus Limited - B B - ! 148
Jam8 Prime Focus LLP o S 0.21 | = |
Prime Focus World NV - 2027 =
Double Negative Limited } S ~ 56.96 | | -
I
Deferred consideration payable - I
Prime Focus Limited - 4734134 | 52,112.38
|

Trade receivables B :

Prime Focus International Services UK Limited DR - 970_41__ | B
Double Negative Limited Fam 2984863 |  5068.17
Double Negative Canada Productions Limited - | 202808 73230
Double Negative Montreal Productions Limited 3,281.57 732.30
ReDefine FX Limited — N - - — =] 732.30 |
Unbilled revenue/ (Deferred revenue) -/ I

Redefine FX Limited - (950.24)
Double Negative Montreal Productions Limited (o, 113 46) (2,797 37)]
Double Negative Limited - . B (280.89) 1,932.12
DNEG North Americalnc - - (4 84) (4.84)
Prime Focus International Services UK Limited " (882.11))
Double Negative Canada Productions Limited o _20.17 ~ 713.84

|

Corporate guarantees given by and outstanding attheyearend |

Prime Focu_s Limited o B | 13,400.00 13,400.00
Prime Focus World N.V. - - | 1,800.00 1.800.00

Notes:

a. During the year, PF Digital Media Services Limited (PF Digital) was merged with Prime Focus Limited (PFL), and
therefore the balances of PF Digital are merged with PFL in both reported years
b. The promoters has given personal guarantee and has pledged part of his shareholdings of PFL for borrowings taken

by the Company (Refer Note 17)

c. During previous year, ¥ 70.07 lakhs was written back towards Prime Focus HK Holdings Limited
d. All contracts/ arrangement with the related parties are at arms length

\
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32. Capital commitments in  Lakhs
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account (net of advances)
{and not provided for: 60.60 235,88

33. Contingent liabilitles

" in ¥ Lakhs

March 31,2022 | March 31, 2021

Income Tax Matters under dispute
Relates to demands raised by the income tax authorities for AY 2017-18 under Transfer pricing 1,818.19 1,434.00
provisions Margin Adjustments on transfer pricing transaction. The matter Is pending before
[Income tax appellate tribunal,
MNote:
In respect of above matters, the Company is hopeful of succeeding in appeals and as such does not expect any significant liability to
materialize. Future cash flows in respect of above are determinable only on receipt of judgements/ decisions pending with the authority.

34. Leases
a. Maturity profile of lease llabilities
§ ) in ¥ Lakhs
| March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
| Carrying Amount, Undiscounted | Carrying Amount  Undiscounted
| Cash flow Cash flow
| within one year 5,587.60 | 7,326.82 5,275.47 6,330.73
| later than one year and not later than five years 10,723.57 12,799.67 9,220.08 11,082,00
fater than five years N 176.17 179.55 - . &
16,487.34 20,306.04 14,495.55 17,422.74 |

35. Segment reporting

The segment information has been prepared in line with the review of operating results by chief operating decision maker (CODM). The
Company is presently operating as integrated post-production services to Prime Focus World NV, the immediate holding company and
fellow subsidiaries and is considered as representing a single operating segment.

The Company operates in four principal geographical areas — India (Country of Domicile), United Kingdom, Canada and United States of
America. The Company's revenue from continuing operations from customers by location of customers and information about its non-
current assets by location of assets are detailed below:

___inTLlakhs

“Segment Non-current assets |
‘March 31, 2022 '; March 31, 2029 |

"~ Revenue from operations
“March 31,2022 | | March 31, 2021

[ [
' [
India_ | 1337096 |  6,660.51 I 35,376.66 | 32.515.43
United Kingdom B | a7017.es| 34,520.05 E =
Canada | 23 53229 | 13, ,375.97 | ) R
I:United States of America [ [ ose | - | |
i 73,921, 13 54,557.07 35,376.66 | 32,515.43 |

Two customers contributed 10% or more of the Company's total revenue for the year ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021
(refer note 31).

36. Corporate soclal responsibllity in ¥ Lakhs
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Gross Amount required to be spent by the company during the year 42.51 29.35
Amount Spent during the year on:

(i) Construction/ Acquisition of any Asset - -
(i) On purpose other than above 38.22 2.99

The amount of shortfall at the end of the year out of the amount required to be spent by the
Company during the year * 4.29 26.36
The total of previous years' shortfall amounts - -

* Company did not spend entire amount on CSR activities during the year. However, the unspent amount
was transferred to Government recognised funds in term of notification dated 22nd January, 2021. The
unspent amount for year 2021-22 was paid on 27th September, 2022, however due to technical issues

it was returned and same was repaid on 1st October, 2022
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37. Pursuant to shareholders’ approval, a business transfer agreement (the "BTA") was executed during the year between
the Company and Prime Focus Limited (PFL), Ultimate Holding Company, for purchase of PFL's India production services
business ("IPS") effective March 31, 2022 for a consideration of Z 36,500.00 lakhs, adjusted for working capital adjustments
and indebtedness.

As per Ind AS 103 (Appendix C), "Business Combinations of entities under common control”, the financial information in the
financial statements in respect of prior periods have been restated as if the business combination had occurred from the
beginning of the previous year i.e. April 1, 2020. The consideration net of working capital adjustment worked out to ¥
40,726.18 lakhs

As per Appendix C, the following figures of revenue and directly attributable expenses related to 1PS business for the period
from April 1, 2021 to March 31, 2022 had been included in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the previous year:

Statement of Profit and Loss in ¥ Lakhs
For the
period April
01, 2021 to
March, 31,
2022*
Revenue from operations 10,552.56
Other income 524.99
Total Income 11,077.55
Expenses
Employee benefits expense 1,313.28
Finance costs 392.65
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment expense 4,070.31
Other expense 3,088.10
Total expenses 8,864.34
Profit before tax 2,213.21

*figures extracted based on information available with the Company and relied upon by the auditors.

The difference between the carrying amount of net assets acquired as at Aprit 01, 2020 aggregating to ¥ 13,899.46 lakhs
and the consideration payable on that deemed acquisition date, had been transferred to Capital Reserve (debit of Rs.

Capital reserve pertains to amount emanating on application of Ind AS 103 (Appendix C}), "Business Combinations of entities
under common control" which is as follows: (i) merger of entities w.e.f 1st April, 2019 of ¥ 7,816.82 lakhs, (i) acquisition of
India VFX business in year 2020-21 of ¥ 27,653.32 lakhs and (jii) acquisition of India Production Services business in year
2021-22 of ¥ 26,908.98 lakhs.

38. Additional Regulatory Informations:

i. Key financial ratios

Ratios As at March 31,| As at March 31, |Variation Reason for
2022 2021 variation

Current ratio 0.56 0.41 38% Refer Note 1
Debt-Equity Ratio (1.89) (1.13) 67% Refer Note 2
Debt service coverage ratio 212 1.93 10%

Return on equity ratio 0.83 0.05 1738% Refer Note 3
Debtors (trade receivable) turnover ratio 2.95 5.18 -43% Refer Note 1
Trade payables turnover ratio 3.93 3.56 10%

Net capital turnover ratio (1.80) 1.17) 55% Refer Note 3
Net profit ratio 0.11 0.01 1256% Refer Note 3
Return on capital employed (13.81) (0.74) 1760% Refer Note 3
Return on investment (0.34) (0.01) 2361% Refer Note 3
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Reasons for variation:

1. Variation on account of increase in operations on account of strong rebounding of production content demand particularly
for the types of services the Company delivers as compared to previous year due to COVID-19 pandemic in previous year,
2. Variation on account of fresh borrowings and lease arrangements taken during the year.

3. Variation on account of increase in profit due to increase in operations for the reason as stated in point no.1

Formula for computation of aforesaid ratios

1) Current ratio: Current asset / Current liability

2) Debt equity ratio: Total debt / Total equity

3) Debt service coverage ratio: Earning before interest, depreciation and tax / Interest + principal repayment of

long term borrowings and Leases

4) Return on equity/ investments: Profit after Tax/ Average equity

5) Debtors (trade receivable) turnover ratio: Revenue from operations / Average account receivable

6) Trade payables turnover ratio: Total expenses excluding employee cost, interest and depreciation /Average trade payables
7) Net capital turnover ratio: Revenue from operations / Average working capital

8) Net profit ratio: Profit after tax/ Revenue from operations

9) Return on capital employed: Net profit before interest and tax / Capital Employed(Shareholders Fund+long term borrowings
10) Return on investment: Profit after tax / Total equity

ii. Other informations:-

a. The Company does not have any benami property held in its name. No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending
against the Company for holding benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and
Rules made thereunder.

b. The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender or government or
any government authority.

¢. The Company has transactions with other companies that are struck off under Section 248 of the Company’s Act, 2013 or
Section 560 of the Company's Act, 1956.

in  Lakhs

Name of the Company Nature of Balance Balance
transactions with outstanding | outstanding
struck-off company | as at March | as at March

31, 2022 31. 2021

Razorblade Pictures Pvt Ltd* Rendering of 12.28 -

services
Microsidd India Private Limited* Operating expenses - -

* Not related party of the company.
d. The Company has complied with the requirement with respect to number of layers as prescribed under section 2(87) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Restriction on number of layers) Rules, 2017.
e. There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in tax assessments under the Income Tax Act,
1961 (such as search or survey), that has not been recorded in the books of account.
f. The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the year.
g. Utilisation of borrowed funds and share premium :
(i) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:
- Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
- Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the uitimate beneficiaries.
(ii). The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party)
with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:
- Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
- Provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.
h. The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction of charges which is yet to be registered with Registrar of
Companies beyond the statutory period.
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/PEEG INDIA MEDIA SERVICES LIMITED
3, Global heaith pandemic on covid-19
The outbreak of Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic globally and in India is causing significant disturbance and slowdown of
€conomic activity. The Company has considered internal and external information up to the date of approval of these
financial statements in assessing the recoverability of receivables including unbilled receivables, goodwill, investment, loans
and other assets. Based on the current indicators of future economic conditions, the Company expects to recover the
Carrying amount of these assets.

The impact of COVID-19 remains uncertain and may be different from what the Company have estimated as of the date of
approval of these financial statements.

A0. Event after reporting period
There were no events after the reporting period requiring adjustments or disclosures in these financial statements relating to
COVID-19 pandemic).

41, Event after reporting period

The scheme of amalgamation of DNEG Creative Services Limited (DCSL), erstwhile Holding Company of the Company and
Double Negative India Private Limited (DNIPL), fellow subsidiary of the Company (together referred to as “the amalgamating
companies") with the Company was approved by the Board of Directors at its meeting held on June 17,2019 with an
appointed date of April 01, 2019. All the three entities are in the business of providing post-production services to Prime
Focus World NV, the intermediate holding company. The said scheme had been approved by National Company Law
Tribunal ("NCLT") on March 12, 2020. This common control business combination had been accounted as per the scheme
and in accordance with Appendix C of Ind AS 103 "Business Combinations". Further, in terms of the scheme, 98,079,600
equity shares of ¥10 each of the Company are outstanding to be issued and allotted as fully paid up to the shareholders of
the DCSL as at March 31, 2020. This amount has been included under "Other Equity". Equity Shares were allotted to share
holders of the Company on April 01, 2020 as part of scheme of amalgamation.

42. Approval of financial statements
The financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on September 30, 2022

See accompanying notes to the financial statements 1-42

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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Naresh Malhotra Merzin Tavaria
Director Whole-time Director
DIN 00004597 DIN 07015623
Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbal
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Vikas Rathee Varsha Gupta
Executive Director and Company Secretary
Chief Financial Officer Place: Mumbai

\ DIN 07015635

Place : London

Date : September 30, 2022




